Louisiana State Racing Commission



Rules of Racing Cumulative Supplement (To the 2012 Main Book)

FEBRUARY 2019

EFFECTIVE February 20, 2019

Table of Contents

Title 35. HORSE RACING	3
Part I. General Provisions	3
Chapter 15. Permitted Medication	3
§1505. Nonsteroidal and/or Anti-Inflammatory Medication	3
§1506. Permitted Medications in Quarter Horses	
Chapter 17. Penalty Guidelines	
§1725. Controlled Medication	
§1787. Pre-Race Testing	
§1797. Penalty Guidelines	
	,
Part III. Personnel, Registration and Licensing	
Chapter 57. Associations' Duties and Obligations	
§5704. Public Address System	
§5706. Barns on Backside of Racetrack	
§5707. Fire Prevention Security	
§5708. Receiving Barn	
§5709. Housing of Stable Employees	
§5710. Tack Room	
§5713. Ambulance	
§5714. Equine Ambulance	5
§5723. Lighting	5
§5724. Rails	6
§5764. Surface of Race Course	6
Part V. Racing Procedures	6
Chapter 63. Entries	
§6336. Preference for Eliminated Horses	
30330. Treference for Eminiated Horses	
Part IX. Weights	6
Chapter 91. Weight Penalties and Allowances	6
§9105. Disputed Race	6
Part XI. Claiming Rules and Engagements	6
Chapter 99. Claiming Rule	
§9905. Timing of Entering Next Claiming Race	
§9909. Resale; Movement	
Part XIII. Wagering	7
Chapter 110. Pick Five or Pick Six	7
§11003. Pick Six	7
Title 46. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL STANDARDS	۵
Part XLI. Horseracing Occupations	
Chapter 7. Jockeys and Apprentice Jockeys	
§725. Jockey Fee Schedule	
§742. Jockey Apparel Advertising	
Chapter 19. Training Tracks	
§1903. License Information	
§1703. License information	9

Title 35 HORSE RACING Part I. General Provisions

Chapter 15. Permitted Medication

§1505. Therapeutic and/or Nonsteroidal and/or Anti-Inflammatory Medication

A. No nonsteroidal and/or anti-inflammatory medication and/or therapeutic medication of any kind may be administered to or used on a horse in training and eligible to be raced at a race meeting in this state except by a licensed veterinarian or a licensed trainer, or under his or her personal order; provided, however, that any such medication given hypodermically may only be administered by a licensed veterinarian. The nonsteroidal, anti-inflammatory medications and/or therapeutic medication of any kind shall only be allowed to be administered as is set forth in Chapter 17, Section 1721 and Section 1725. All other category 3, 4 and 5 medications as listed by the Association of Racing Commissioners International, Inc., Drug Testing and Quality Assurance Program's uniform classification guidelines for foreign substances may not be administered within 24 hours of a race in which a horse is entered to race.

B. ...

C. Detection of any category 1 or 2 medication, drug, or substance as defined and listed by the Association of Racing Commissioners International, Inc. Drug Testing and Quality Assurance Program's *Uniform Classification Guidelines for Foreign Substances* constitutes a violation.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:141 and R.S. 4:142.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 9:547 (August 1983), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 37:1393 (May 2011), LR 38:1408 (June 2012), LR 39:1281 (May 2013), LR 41:1673 (September 2015).

§1506. Permitted Medications in Quarter Horses

- A. Any racehorse participating in a quarter horse race shall comply with the medication rules set forth herein, specifically LAC 35:I.Chapter 15 and LAC 35:I.Chapter 17, however the following exception(s) shall apply.
- 1. Clenbuterol is a prohibited substance in quarter horses and other breeds racing with quarter horses.

There is no applicable withdrawal guideline for such horses.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148 HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 45:247 (February 2019).

Chapter 17. Corrupt and Prohibited Practices

§1725. Controlled Medication

- A. Controlled medications are permitted in Louisiana as set forth in the list of controlled therapeutic medications published by the Association of Racing Commissioners International, Inc. and shall only be administered as therein prescribed and regulated at the threshold levels set forth in said list.
- B. The controlled therapeutic medications list as published by the Association of Racing Commissioners International, Inc., shall be maintained on the commission website and at the domicile office and be made available to the public upon request.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the Racing Commission in 1971, promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 2:449 (December 1976), amended LR 3:45 (January 1977), LR 4:287 (August 1978), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 41:1672 (September 2015).

§1787. Pre-Race Testing

A - G. ...

H. Whenever pre-race laboratory test reports indicate the presence of a prohibited medication or drug in the sample taken from a horse scheduled to race, particularly, but not limited to specific maximum by quantitative determination of 2.0 micrograms phenylbutazone per milliliter of blood, stewards shall scratch the horse from the race. On the first offense a penalty of not less than \$100, nor more than \$200, shall be assessed the trainer. Upon second or multiple offenses for positive tests, the stewards shall take whatever action they deem appropriate, consistent with law and the *Rules of Racing*.

I. - L. ...

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:141 and R.S. 4:148.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 8:140 (March 1982), amended LR 12:419 (July 1986), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 41:1672 (September 2015).

§1797. Penalty Guidelines

A. – B.4. ...

- a. On ordinary violation(s) of classes IV or V within a 12-month period the trainer shall be fined \$500 on the first violation; \$1,000 on the second violation; and on the third and subsequent violations the trainer shall be fined \$1000, the purse shall be redistributed and the case referred to the commission for further action.
- b. On extraordinary violation(s) of classes IV or V in a manner that might affect the performance of a horse within a 12-month period, the trainer shall be fined \$1,000 and the purse shall be redistributed on the first offense. On the second and subsequent violations, the trainer shall be fined \$1000, the purse shall be redistributed and the case referred to the commission for further action.
- c. On gross violation(s) of classes IV or V in a manner that intends to affect the performance of a horse the trainer shall be fined not less than \$1,000, the purse shall be redistributed and the case referred to the commission for further action.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:141 and R.S. 4:148.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Economic Development, Racing Commission LR 19:613 (May 1993), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission LR 28:1014 (May 2002), LR 30:1017 (May 2004), LR 40:528 (March 2014).

Part III. Personnel, Registration and Licensing

Chapter 57. Associations' Duties and Obligations

§5704. Public Address System

A. An association shall provide and maintain a public address system capable of transmitting announcements to the patrons and to the stable area.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:913 (May 2018).

§5706. Barns on Backside of Racetrack

A. An association shall ensure that the barns are kept in good repair and are kept clean by the licensed occupants. Each barn, including the receiving barn, must have a hot and cold water supply available and have ventilation proper for the housing of horses.

- B. Any new barns, additions, or expansions built by a licensed association after the adoption of this Rule shall ensure that the individual box stall shall have a minimum dimensions of 10 feet by 10 feet and if constructed of concrete walls, they must be woodlined on the interior up a minimum of 4 feet from the ground or otherwise be insulated for the protection of the stabled horse.
- C. An association shall provide an adequate area for the placement of manure removed from the stalls. All manure storage and removal shall be conducted in compliance with the rules and regulations set forth by the Department of Environmental Quality. Nothing in the Rule is to supersede any requirements set forth by the Department of Environmental Quality.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:913 (May 2018).

§5707. Fire Prevention Security

- A. A round-the-clock patrol of the fenced area shall be maintained by security officers, who shall pay special attention to the presence of unauthorized personnel, to the enforcement of fire prevention measures and to the inspection of tack rooms and living quarters for fire hazards.
- B. The association shall ensure compliance with the local fire marshal regarding safety regulations and shall provide the commission proof of compliance constituting the most recent inspection by the local fire marshal or state-approved fire inspection service on an annual basis.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the Racing Commission in 1971, promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 2:434 (December 1976), amended LR 3:30 (January 1977), LR 4:278 (August 1978), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:914 (May 2018).

§5708. Receiving Barn

- A. The association shall provide a receiving barn, which shall be a separate barn.
- B. The stall size and number of stalls of the receiving barn shall be approved by the commission.
- C. The receiving barn shall be restricted to horses that are entered and shipping in to run in a scheduled race, or shipping in/out for morning work and go.
- D. No full-time or temporary stabling shall be allowed during an approved race meet and the

receiving barn shall not be used as a quarantine facility by the association, unless otherwise approved by the commission.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 43:1914 (October 2017)

§5709. Housing of Stable Employees

- A. Each association shall provide adequate and sanitary living quarters with proper sanitary arrangements, and ample and convenient toilet facilities for stable employees, and shall provide in its stable area at least 1 tack room of a minimum area of 100 square feet for every 6 horses stabled, with adequate facilities for housing personnel therein.
- B. The living quarters shall comply with all state and local building and fire codes associated with the housing of people.
- C. Dependent upon the season of the race meet, the association may also be required by the commission to have heating and air conditioning.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the Racing Commission in 1971, promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 2:434 (December 1976), amended LR 3:30 (January 1977), LR 4:278 (August 1978), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:914 (May 2018).

§5710. Tack Room

A. Each association shall provide in its stable area at least 1 tack room of a minimum area of 100 square feet for every 6 horses stabled, with adequate facilities for housing personnel therein.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:914 (May 2018)

§5713. Ambulance

- A. Each association shall provide one ambulance during its training and racing hours. During such time, the ambulance shall be ready for duty, properly equipped to provide emergency medical services, including equipment and a registered paramedic and a certified emergency medical technician, and shall have immediate access to the racing strip. If the ambulance is being used to transport an individual, the association shall not conduct a race, or allow horses with riders on the racetrack until the ambulance is replaced.
- B. Unless otherwise approved by the commission or the stewards, an ambulance shall follow the field at a safe distance during the running of races.

C. The ambulance shall be parked at an entrance to the racing strip except when the ambulance is being used to transport an individual or when it is following the field during the running of a race.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 9:546 (August 1983), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:914 (May 2018)

§5714. Equine Ambulance

- A. An association shall provide an equine ambulance staffed by trained personnel on association grounds on each day that the racetrack is open for racing or training.
- B. The ambulance shall be properly ventilated and kept at an entrance to the racetrack when not in use.
- C. The ambulance shall be a covered vehicle that is low to the ground and large enough to accommodate a horse in distress and transport a horse off of the racetrack and association grounds.
 - D. The ambulance shall be equipped with:
- 1. large, portable screens to shield a horse from public view;
 - 2. ramps to facilitate loading a horse;
 - 3. adequate means of loading a horse that is down;
 - 4. a padded interior; and
- 5. a movable partition to initially provide more room to load a horse and to later restrict a horse's movement.
- E. An association shall not conduct a race unless an equine ambulance or an official state veterinarian-approved substitute is readily available.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:914 (May 2018)

§5723. Lighting

- A. The stable area must be properly lighted, so that it will be entirely void of darkness in any section. Lights will be turned on at dusk and they shall remain on until one hour after the last race. Lights shall not be turned on or off while the horses are on the track.
- B. An association shall provide lighting for the patron facilities that is adequate to ensure the safety and security of the patrons and licensees.
- C. If an association conducts racing at night, the association shall maintain an emergency back-up lighting system on the racetrack proper to allow for the

safety of the horses and related personnel during the race.

D. This Rule is not meant to supersede any state laws or local ordinances applicable to any individual licensed association.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the Racing Commission in 1971, promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 2:434 (December 1976), amended LR 3:30 (January 1977), LR 4:278 (August 1978), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:914 (May 2018).

§5724. Rails

- A. Racetracks, including turf tracks, shall have inside and outside rails, including gap rails, designed, constructed and maintained to provide for the safety of jockeys and horses. The design and construction of rails must be approved by the commission prior to the first race meeting at the track.
- B. The top of the inside rail must be at least 38 inches, but not more than 50 inches above the top of the cushion.
- C. The top of the outside rail must be at least 34 inches, but not more than 50 inches above the top of the cushion. Any outside rails modified or installed after the adoption of these rules shall be at least 38 inches, but not more than 50 inches above the top of the cushion.
- D. The inside dirt race/running rail may have an overhang of no less than 24 inches with a continuous smooth cover of material designed to withstand the impact of a horse and rider.
- E. All race/running rails should be constructed of materials designed to withstand the impact of a horse and rider running at a gallop, with structural integrity, free of cracks, breaks, splinters and shall not contain any exposed sharp edges.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:915 (May 2018).

§5764. Surface of Race Course

- A. The surface of a racetrack, including the cushion, subsurface and base, must be designed, constructed, and maintained to provide for the safety of the jockeys and horses.
- B. An association shall provide an adequate drainage system for the racetrack and turf course.
- C. An association shall maintain the track surface in a safe training and racing condition.

D. An association that conducts races on a turf track shall provide a system capable of adequately watering the entire turf course evenly.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:915 (May 2018).

Part V. Racing Procedures

Chapter 63. Entries

§6336. Preference for Eliminated Horses

A. Should two horses which are owned separately, but trained by the same trainer, be entered in any race, causing an excess of the number of horses which may, because of track limitation, be permitted to start, the horses to start shall be determined and selected by lot from all of the horses entered. Those entries which are eliminated shall receive a preference as provided in these rules.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 13:289 (May 1987), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Racing Commission, LR 14:702 (October 1988), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 45:247 (February 2019).

Part IX. Weights

Chapter 91. Weight Penalties and Allowances

§9105. Disputed Race

A. When the decision of a race is in dispute, all horses involved in the dispute with respect to the winner's credit shall be liable to all penalties, including conditions and weights, attached to the winning of that race until a winner has been adjudged.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the Racing Commission in 1971, promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 2:443 (December 1976), amended LR 3:39 (January 1977), LR 4:284 (August 1978), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 39:1281 (May 2013).

Part XI. Claiming Rules and Engagements

Chapter 99. Claiming Rule

§9905. Timing of Entering Next Claiming Race

A. Except as otherwise provided herein, a claimed horse shall not enter in starter, optional or claiming races for 20 days after being claimed in a race in which

the determining eligibility price is less than 25 percent more than the price at which the horse was claimed. For a period of 10 days thereafter, a horse is eligible to run back for the same claiming price or higher. The day claimed shall not count, but the following calendar day shall be the first day and the horse shall be entitled to enter whenever necessary so the horse may start on the thirty-first day following the claim for any claiming price. This provision shall not apply to starter handicaps in which the weight to be carried is assigned by the handicapper. A similar rule in other states will be recognized and enforced.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:141, R.S. 4:142 and R.S. 4:148.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 30:1476 (July 2004), amended LR 33:2422 (November 2007), LR 41:1673 (September 2015), LR 44:916 (May 2018).

§9909. Resale; Movement

A. If a horse is claimed, it shall not be sold or transferred to anyone wholly or in part, except in a selling or claiming race, for a period of 30 days from date of claim, nor shall it, unless reclaimed, remain in the same stable or under the control of management of its former owner or trainer for a like period, nor shall it race in any other state until after the close of entries of the meeting at which it was claimed, unless special permission is obtained from the commission. However, a horse claimed at a track in Louisiana must remain at the track where it was claimed for a period of 60 calendar days or until after the close of entries of the meeting at which it was claimed. Where a race meeting is authorized and conducted as a split-meeting, a horse claimed in such a race meeting must remain at the track where it was claimed for a period of 60 calendar days or until after the close of entries of that segment of the split meeting at which it was claimed. The following calendar day shall be the first day and the horse shall be entitled to enter at another track in the state whenever necessary so the horse may start on the sixtyfirst day following the claim.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:141, R.S. 4:142 and R.S. 4:148.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the Racing Commission in 1971, promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 2:446 (December 1976), amended LR 3:42 (January 1977), LR 4:285 (August 1978), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Racing Commission, LR 17:878 (September 1991), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 44:916 (May 2018).

Part XIII. Wagering

Chapter 110. Pick Five or Pick Six

§11003. Pick Six

- A. The pick six pari-mutuel pool is not a parlay and has no connection with or relation to any other parimutuel pool conducted by the association, nor to any win, place and show pool shown on the totalizator, nor to the rules governing the distribution of such other pools.
- B. A pick six pari-mutuel ticket shall be evidence of a binding contract between the holder of the ticket and the association and the said ticket shall constitute an acceptance of the pick six provisions and rules.
- C. A pick six may be given a distinctive name by the association conducting the meeting, subject to approval of the commission.
- D. The pick six pari-mutuel pool consists of amounts contributed for a selection for win only in each of six races designated by the association with the approval of the commission. Each person purchasing a pick six ticket shall designate the winning horse in each of the six races comprising the pick six.
- E. Those horses constituting an entry of coupled horses or those horses coupled to constitute the field in a race comprising the pick six shall race as a single wagering interest for the purpose of the pick six parimutuel pool calculations and payouts to the public. However, if any part of either an entry or the field racing as a single wagering interest is a starter in a race, the entry or the field selection shall remain as the designated selection to win in that race for the pick six calculation and the selection shall not be deemed a scratch.
- F. The pick six pari-mutuel pool shall be calculated as follows.
 - 1. The net amount in the pari-mutuel pool referred to in this Section is defined as the parimutuel pool created by pick six wagering on that particular day and does not include any amounts carried over from previous days' betting as provided by in Subparagraph F.3.a and Subparagraph F.4.a below.
 - 2. One hundred percent of the net amount in the pari-mutuel pool is subject to distribution to a single unique winning ticket holder, plus any carryover resulting from provisions of Paragraph F.3 and Paragraph F.4 shall be distributed to the unique winning ticket holder of the single pari-

mutuel ticket which correctly designates the official winner in each of the six races comprising the pick six.

- 3. In the event there is more than one pari-mutuel ticket properly issued which correctly designates the official winner in each of the six races comprising the pick six, the net pari-mutuel pool shall be distributed as follows.
 - a. Fifty percent of the net amount in the parimutuel pool shall be retained by the association as distributable amounts and shall be carried over to the next succeeding racing day as an additional net amount to be distributed as provided in Paragraph F.2.
 - b. Fifty percent of the net amount in the parimutuel pool subject to distribution among winning ticket holders shall be distributed among the holders of pari-mutuel tickets which correctly designate the official winner in each of the six races comprising the pick-six.
- 4. In the event there is no pari-mutuel ticket properly issued which correctly designates the official winner in each of the six races comprising the pick six, the net pari-mutuel pool shall be distributed as follows.
- a. Fifty percent of the net amount in the parimutuel pool shall be retained by the association as distributable amounts and shall be carried over to the next succeeding racing day as an additional net amount to be distributed as provided in Paragraph F.2.
- b. Fifty percent of the net amount in the parimutuel pool subject to distribution among winning ticket holders shall be distributed among the holders of pari-mutuel tickets which correctly designate the most official winners, but less than six, in each of the six races comprising the pick six.
- 5. Should no distribution be made pursuant to Paragraph F.1 on the last day of the association meeting, then that portion of the distributable pool and all monies accumulated therein shall be distributed to the holders of tickets correctly designating the most winning selections of the six races comprising the pick six for that day or night; the provisions of Subsections I and J have no application on said last day.
- G. In the event a pick six ticket designates a selection in any one or more of the races comprising the pick and that selection is scratched, excused or

determined by the stewards to be a nonstarter in the race, the actual favorite, as evidenced by the amounts wagered in the win pool at the time of the start of the race, will be substituted for the nonstarting selection for all purposes, including pool calculations and payoffs. In the event the amount wagered in the win pool on two or more favorites is identical, the favorite with the lowest number on the program will be designated as the actual favorite.

- H. In the event of a dead heat for win between two or more horses in any pick six race, all such horses in the dead heat for win shall be considered as winning horses in that race for the purpose of calculating the pool.
- I. No pick six shall be refunded except when all of the races comprising the pick six are canceled or declared as "no contest." The refund shall apply only to the pick six pool established on that racing card. Any net pool carryover accrued from a previous pick six feature shall be further carried over to the next scheduled pick six feature operated by the association.
- J. In the event that any number of races less than six comprising the pick six are completed, 100 percent of the net pool for the pick six shall be distributed among holders of pari-mutuel tickets that designate the most winners in the completed races. No carryover from a previous day shall be added to the pick six pool in which less than six races have been completed. Any net pool carryover accrued from a previous pick six feature shall be further carried over to the next scheduled pick six pool operated by the association.
- K. No pari-mutuel ticket for the pick six pool shall be sold, exchanged or canceled after the time of the closing of wagering in the first of the six races comprising the pick six, except for such refunds on pick six tickets as required by this regulation, and no person shall disclose the number of tickets sold in the pick six pool or the number or amount of tickets selecting winners of pick six races until such time as the stewards have determined the last race comprising the pick six each day to be official.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:149, R.S. 4:149.1, R.S. 4:149.2, and R.S. 4:149.3.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 39:2493 (September 2013).

Title 46 PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL STANDARDS Part XLI. Horseracing Occupations

Chapter 7. Jockeys and Apprentice Jockeys §725. Jockey Fee Schedule

A. Prior to the start of each race conducted by an association licensed by the commission, sufficient money shall be on deposit with the horsemen's bookkeeper in an amount equal to pay the losing mount fee of a jockey for that race. In the absence of a special agreement, the fee of a jockey shall be as follows.

Purse	Win	Second	Third	Unplaced
\$499 and under	\$27	\$19	\$17	\$16
500-599	30	20	17	16
600-699	36	22	17	16
700-999	10%	25	22	20
1,000-1,499	10%	30	25	22
1,500-1,999	10%	35	30	28
2,000-3,499	10%	45	35	33
3,500-4,999	10%	70	60	55
5,000-9,999	10%	80	70	65
10,000-14,999	10%	5%	75	70
15,000-24,999	10%	5%	5%	75
25,000-49,999	10%	5%	5%	80
50,000-99,999	10%	5%	5%	95
100,000 and up	10%	5%	5%	120

B. Failure, refusal and/or neglect of a trainer to timely deposit or have deposited the aforesaid jockey fee for a horse entered to race, on or before the time specified herein, shall be a violation of this Section. Each such violation shall be punishable by a fine of not less than \$200 and the failure to pay such fine within 48 hours of imposition thereof shall be grounds for suspension. Additionally, an amount equal to the jockey fee actually earned by the jockey in accordance with the aforesaid schedule shall be paid to the jockey earning same within 48 hours of the imposition of the aforesaid fine, and failure to pay said jockey fee within the time specified herein shall be an additional grounds for suspension.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148, R.S. 4:150 and R.S. 4:151.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the Racing Commission in 1971, promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 2:431 (December 1976), amended LR 3:28 (January 1977), LR 4:276 (August 1978), LR 5:23 (February 1979), LR 12:12 (January 1986), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Racing Commission, LR 16:112 (February 1990), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 35:2756 (December 2009), LR 44:915 (May 2018).

§742. Jockey Apparel Advertising

- A. A jockey shall not wear advertising or promotional material of any kind on clothing during a race, unless the following criteria are met:
 - 1. a maximum of 32 square inches on each thigh of the pants on the outer side between the hip and knee and 10 square inches on the rear of the pant at the waistline at the base of the spine;
 - 2. a maximum of 24 square inches on boots and leggings on the outside of each nearest the top of the boot;
 - 3. a maximum of six square inches on the front center of the neck area (on a turtleneck or other undergarment);
 - 4. such advertising or promotional material does not compete with, conflict with, or infringe upon any current sponsorship agreement to the racing association race or race meet.
- B. The stewards, at their discretion, may disallow any advertising that is not in compliance with this Rule, any other rules of racing, or any advertising they deem to be inappropriate, indecent, in poor taste, or controversial.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148, R.S. 4:150 and R.S. 4:151.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission LR 42:744 (May 2016).

Chapter 19. Training Tracks

§1903. License Information

A. – B.5. ...

6. name of liability insurer, policy number, name of insureds, certificate of insurance in an amount not less than \$1,000,000, and proof that the Louisiana State Racing Commission is listed as a notified party on the insurance policy and certificate in such a manner that the Louisiana State Racing Commission receives notice of all renewals and any lapses in coverage;

7. ...

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 4:148. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Racing Commission, LR 4:289 (August 1978), amended by the Office of the Governor, Division of Administration, Racing Commission, LR 38:1018 (April 2012), LR 43:316 (February 2017)

* * * * *